
 1 

 

 
 

PROPOSED AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE COUNCIL 

January 21, 2020 - 7:00 P.M. 
Page Memorial Building 

Village Council Chambers 

839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, Michigan 48849 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

III. Roll Call 

 

IV. Approval of Agenda 

 

V. Citizen Comment on Agenda Items: 

Under the Open Meetings Act, any citizen may come forward at this time and make comment on 

items that appear on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per person.  Anyone who 

would like to speak shall state his/her name and address for the record.  Remarks should be confined 

to the question at hand and addressed to the chair in a courteous tone.  No person shall have the right 

to speak more than once on any particular subject until all other persons wishing to be heard on that 

subject have had the opportunity to speak. 

 

VI. Minutes:  To approve regular meeting minutes for December 16, 2019 meeting minutes 

 

VII. Bills: 

a) Approve bills equal to or less than $3,000.00 each from 12/1//2019 to 12/31/2019 

b) Approve bills in excess of $3,000.00 each, including: 

  

1. SLC Meter LLC – $5,620.64 – Purchase of Water Meters (Paid)  

 

VIII. Consent Agenda 

The following consent agenda will normally be adopted without discussion; however, at the request of 

any council member, any item may be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. 

 

Reports and Minutes:  To accept and file the following: 

 

a) Lake Odessa Zoning Administrator Monthly Report 

b) Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority Minutes – November 2019 

 

IX. Departmental Reports: 

a) Village Manager’s Report 



 2 

b) Police Department 

c) Department of Public Works  

d) Finance Report  

X. Committee Reports 

a)   Personnel / Finance Committee 

b) Recreation / Special Projects Committee 

 

XI. Presentations 

a)  None 

 

XII. Discussion Items 

a)         None 

 

XIII. Public Hearing 

a) None 

 

XIV. Unfinished Business  

a)         None 

 

XV. New Business: 

a) Proposed Resolution 2020-01: Approving the Appointment of Meg Wheeler to the Planning 

Commission 

 

b) Proposed Resolution 2020-02: Approving the Setting of a Public Hearing on the FY 2020-

2021 Village Budget 

 

c) Proposed Resolution 2020-03: Approval and Acceptance of the Proposed Lakewood 

Recreational Authority’s Articles of Incorporation 

 

d) Nomination and Appointment of Representatives to the Lakewood Recreational Authority 

 

e) Proposed Resolution 2020-04: Approving the Purchase of a 2020 Ford Police Interceptor 

AWD from through the MiDeal program for the Village’s Police Department 

 

f) Proposed Resolution 2020-05: Approving the Purchase of Six (6) Motorola APX Series 

Radios for Use by the Police Department 

 

g) Approval of Budget Amendments as Submitted 

 

XVI. Miscellaneous Correspondence: 

a)    None 

 

XVII. Trustee Comments 

 

XVIII. Public Comment 

 

XIX. Adjournment 



   

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 

 

MINUTES 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

December 16, 2019 (DRAFT) 

PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING 

 

Meeting called to order at 7:00 pm by President Banks. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Motion by Rudisill and supported by McCloud to appoint Stacy Storm as acting secretary. Motion passed. 

Council present:   Karen Banks, Mike Brighton, Kay Hartzler, Charles Jaquays, Mel McCloud, Brandy Walkington, 

Mike Rudisill 

Absent: None 

Staff present: Patrick Reagan, Jesse Trout, Kendra Backing 

Visitors present:  Daryl Hartzler, L. Adams, Carolyn Mayhew, Heidi Reed, Bruce Estes, Al Klein 

Jessica Courtright, Carrie Johnson. 

 

Motion by McCloud support by Walkington to approve the revised agenda as presented.  Motion carried.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Heidi Reed, chair of the Jordan Lake Trail Fundraising Board, wanted to bring attention to what members she would 

like to see the new authority board made up of. She would also like the new authority board to take effect after 

construction of the trail. She brought up concerns she had with delays of the construction and extra costs that the 

engineers were incurring. 

 

Bruce Estes, also from the Jordan Lake Trail Fundraising Committee, brought up his concerns with the creation of 

the new authority. 

 

MINUTES 

Motion by McCloud, support by Jaquays to approve minutes of November 18, 2019.  Motion carried. 

 

BILLS 

Motion by McCloud, support by Rudisill to approve expenditures equal to or less than $3,000.00 for the period 

11/1/2019 thru 11/30/2019.  Motion carried.  

 

Motion by Brighton, support by Walkington to approve payment of invoices in excess of $3,000.00 items as 

follows:  

1. Homeworks/ Tri-County Electric Cooperative - $3,666.96 – Water Plant Electricity (Paid) 

2. Ionia County Drain Commissioner - $6,422.03 – Annual Drain Assessment (Paid) 

 

Motion carried.   

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Rudisill, support by Jaquays to approve the consent agenda, as follows:  

1. Lake Odessa Arts Commission Board Meeting Minutes and Financials – November 2019 

2. Lake Odessa Community Library Board Minutes – October 2019 

3. Lake Odessa Zoning Administrator Monthly Report 

Motion carried.  

 

 



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 

DECEMBER 16, 2019 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 2 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 

Manager’s Report:  Reagan discussed the Jordan Lake Recreational Authority, 2021 Truck, overnight parking, 

holiday village hours, and meeting with the union.   

 

Police Report:  Backing had nothing additional to report. 

Finance: Nothing to report 

DPW:  Nothing additional to report. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

Personnel/Finance Committee:  There was no update.     

Recreation/Special Projects Committee:  There was no update.    

 

PRESENTATIONS 

There were no presentations.    

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

Council discussed the makeup of the members of the Recreational Committee. Heidi Reed also added more 

comments on what the current Trail Board would like to see.   

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Motion made by Rudisill, supported by McCloud to change the Proposed Articles of Incorporation for the 

Lakewood Recreational Authority to 3 At Large members, 2 Township members, and 2 Village members and send 

to Odessa Township. Motion passed. 

 

Motion by Rudisill, supported by Walkington to approve Resolution 2019-42: Purchase of 2021 108SD Freightliner 

Chassis from D & K Truck Company and the outfitting of this equipment from Truck and Trailer Specialists. All 

ayes. Motion passed.  

 

Motion by McCloud, supported by Jaquays to approve the Village Council meeting schedule for 2020 with the 

change to January. January’s meeting will be moved to Tuesday January 21, 2020. Motion passed. 

 

Motion by McCloud, supported by Walkington to approve the Budget Amendments as submitted. All ayes, motion 

passed. 

 

 

TRUSTEE COMMENTS 

 

McCloud wished everyone a Merry Christmas, A Happy New Year, and safe travels. 

 

Jaquays wished everyone a Merry Christmas and safe travels. 

 

Hartzler also wished everyone a Merry Christmas. 

 

Brighton also wished everyone a Merry Christmas. He also thanked the visitors for coming and for their comments. 

He also would like to thank the department heads for their detailed reports. He thanked Patrick for all his work this 

year. 

 

Rudisill wished everyone a safe and Happy Holidays. 

 

Walkington wish everyone happy holidays. 

 



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 

DECEMBER 16, 2019 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 3 

Banks wished everyone happy holidays and thanked the staff and Chamber of Commerce and the Hartzlers and all 

other helpers that made this Christmas season successful.  

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Carolyn Mayhew thanked the board for considering the Jordan Lake Trail Board’s request for more representation 

on the Lakewood Recreational Authority.  

 

Daryl Hartzler also commented and made the board aware of what the businesses downtown were planning for the 

New Year.   

 

Meeting adjourned by President Banks at 7:56pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

 

Stacy Storm 

Acting Secretary  

 

 

 







1 
 

 
 

Lake Odessa Village  
 

Zoning Administrator Report  
 

December 2019 
 

Permits: 
 
None 
 
 
Supplemental: 
 
None 
 
 
Miscellaneous 
Phone calls involved various appraisers checking on the zoning classification of assorted parcels.  
Other questions involved various questions regarding setbacks, fences, pools and permits. 
 
One inquiry was about replacing a roof.  No permits are needed as that is a repair unless truss 
changes are done, then a building permit would be required from the County. 
 
Another caller is buying property in the Village and wanted to know what could be done with it. 
 
It has been a slow month except for inquiries into possible projects and construction (see above 
sentences). 
 



 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
MINUTES 

Regular Meeting - Tuesday, November 12, 2019 
Page Memorial Building, Lake Odessa MI 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Karen Banks, Sue Dahms, Sandy Guthrie, Daryl Hartzler, Sarah McGarry, Bill 

Rogers 
 
ABSENT:  Sarah McGarry, Darwin Thompson 
 
STAFF:   Village Manager Patrick Reagan 
 
VISITORS:  None 
 
I. Call to Order:   Meeting called to order by Vice Chair Rogers at 7:00 a.m. 

 
II. Agenda:  Motion by Dahms, support by Hartzler, to approve agenda as presented.  All ayes; 

motion carried, with Banks, absent. 
 

III. Public Comment:  None. 
 

IV. Minutes:    Motion by Guthrie, support by Dahms, to approve minutes of 9/10/2019 regular 
meeting.  All ayes; motion carried with Banks absent. 
 

Banks arrived at 7:05 a.m. 
 

V. Finance:  Dahms reviewed finance report through October 31, 2019.  Current account balance is 
$19,813.19.  November tax increment revenue has not yet been received, but amount should be 
close to what was received in 2018.  The following two accounts payable were incurred in 
October:  Duwayne's Marketplace, $504.00 (mums) and Wintergreen Corp., $794.65 (twinkle 
lights for downtown trees).  Motion by Guthrie, support by Hartzler to approve finance report.  
All ayes; motion carried. 

 
VI. Action Items/Discussion Items: 

a) Nomination & Election of Officers:  Motion by Guthrie, support by Hartzler to elect the same 
officers as are currently serving (Chair - Sarah McGarry; Vice Chair - Rogers; Treasurer - 
Dahms; Secretary - Banks).  All ayes; motion carried. 
 

b) Approval of 2020 DDA Meeting Schedule:  Motion by Hartzler, support by Guthrie to 
approve the following meeting schedule: 

• Tuesday, January 14, 2020 - 7:00 a.m. 

• Tuesday, March 10, 2020 - 7:00 a.m. 

• Tuesday, May 12, 2020 - 7:00 a.m. 

• Tuesday, July 14, 2020 - 7:00 a.m. 

• Tuesday, September 8, 2020 - 7:00 a.m. 

• Tuesday, November 10, 2020 - 7:00 a.m. 
 

DRAFT 



 

2 
 

All ayes; motion carried. 
 
c) Parking Lot Fence Project:  Discussion was held re: options for fencing, brick columns, etc. , 

including photos of fencing from other communities.  Consensus was to use brick columns 
with a flat top cap and black powder-coated fence sections identical to those used in 
Portland (upper fence section with small inset circle), and concrete bowl-style planters.  
Motion by Banks, support by Dahms, to authorize Reagan to seek bids for construction.  All 
ayes; motion carried. 
 

d) 2020 Budget:  The following 2020 projects and accompanying costs were discussed, as 
follows: 

 

Lights for downtown streetscape trees 1,000 

Parking lot fence project 12,000 

Beautification (summer flowers, soil, etc.) 1,700 

Watering 5,000 

Façade/Sign Grant 15,000 

Training for Board Members 1,000 

Marketing  2,000 

Total: 37,700 

 
A draft budget will be presented for board approval at the January 2020 meeting. 

 
e) Garland Program:  Reagan reminded everyone of the 2020 Holiday Garland Sponsorship 

program and reported this year's program was launched on 11/6/19 (press release in 
11/9/19 Lakewood News, Village website and Hartzler distributed handbills in the 
downtown).  Garland will be installed just prior to Thanksgiving, and volunteers are needed 
to work on the downtown Christmas pots on Monday, Nov. 25 at 5:30 p.m. at the Village 
ambulance garage. 

 
Dahms left the meeting at 8:23 a.m. 

 
VII.   Beautification Committee Report:  No report. 
 
VIII.   Misc. Correspondence:  None. 
 
IX.   Board Member Comments:    

Banks asked if the Board would consider not purchasing fall mums starting in 2020, as the past 
two years they only looked nice for 1 or 2 weeks, then turned brown.  She suggested that funds 
used to purchase mums could be better used elsewhere.   Discussion followed.  Consensus was 
to abandon the purchase of mums in 2020, and try to keep the summer flowers going for as long 
as possible into the early fall.   
 
Banks suggested working with the DPW to construct round caps, painted green, which could be 
attached to the plant surrounds during "off" periods, to prevent people from using the plant 
surrounds as waste containers.  Reagan said he will discuss with the DPW Superintendent. 
 

X. Adjournment:  Without objection, meeting adjourned at 8:24 a.m. 
 



1  

REPORT TO THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA COUNCIL 

 
DATE Tuesday, January 21, 2020 

TO: President Karen Banks; Vice-President Mel McCloud; Trustee 

Brighton; Trustee Rudisill; Trustee Jaquays; Trustee Walkington; Trustee 

Hartzler 

 

FROM: Patrick Reagan, Village Manager  

 

RE: Manager's Report to Village Council 

 

President Banks and Village Council Members, 

 

Please find below my report on the Council agenda before you tonight. 

 

New Business 

 

Proposed Resolution 2020-01: Approving the Appointment of Meg Wheeler to 

the Planning Commission 

 

Meg Wheeler has applied to occupy an available seat on the Village’s Planning 

Commission.  

 

Proposed Resolution 2020-02: Approving the Setting of a Public Hearing on 

the FY 2020-2021 Village Budget 

 

Per Michigan state law, a public hearing must be held prior to budget adoption. 

This resolution sets this hearing for the next Council meeting.  

 

Proposed Resolution 2020-03: Approval and Acceptance of the Proposed 

Lakewood Recreational Authority’s Articles of Incorporation 

 

Please find attached to this Resolution the updated Articles of Incorporation for the 

Lakewood Recreational Authority. The update, per the direction of the Village 

Council at the December 2019 meeting, was to have the composition of the Board 

changed to a format of two members from the Village of Lake Odessa; two 

members from Odessa Township; and three “at large” members.” Please note that 

these Articles of Incorporation were published in the Lakewood News on Saturday, 

January 18, 2020, per PA 321 of 2000. 



2  

Nomination and Appointment of Village Representatives to the Lakewood 

Recreational Authority: 

 

Per Section 2 (A)(1), “two members (are to be) selected by the governing body of 

each participating municipality, each of whom shall be a registered voter and 

elected official or Township/ Village Manager/ Administrator of said participating 

municipality.” 

 

Proposed Resolution 2020-04: Approving the Purchase of a 2020 Ford Police 

Interceptor AWD through the MiDeal program for the Village’s Police 

Department 

 

The Police Department currently has two vehicles that are used for patrolling – a 

2012 Chevrolet Impala and a 2016 Chevrolet Tahoe. From speaking with staff, it 

appears that the Village formerly had a program of keeping police cars for four 

years, thus acquiring a new patrol vehicle every two years. Per the Village’s 

equipment schedule, the 2012 Impala is due to be replaced during the coming 

fiscal year (2020-2021). However, based on the current years budget, remaining 

funds have been found that will allow us to replace this vehicle this year, as the 

2019-2020 budget contained funds for the hiring of part-time officers that never 

happened as the police department is at a sufficient number of full-time officers.  

 

Police vehicles need to be purchased and ordered in a similar fashion to DPW 

equipment – it is purchased, ordered, and then is built to specifications by the 

manufacturer. This means even though we will be ordering and purchasing this 

vehicle in the current budget year, it will not arrive until the 2020-2021 fiscal year. 

Currently, Signature Ford cannot tell us with certainty when we will take 

possession of this patrol vehicle. 

 

Chief Backing and I, along with the Clerk/ Treasurer and the DPW Supervisor, 

have had a number of conversations about this purchase and we are in agreement 

that this makes sense based on the year of the Impala, the equipment replacement 

schedule, and the availability of funds in the current budget year.  

 

Chief Backing performed research on the Ford Police Interceptor and she found 

that many police departments across Michigan are going with this model. It will 

have the necessary clearance to be able to go through snow, down undeveloped 

alleys should the need arise, and as it is all-wheel drive, it should be suitable for 

almost any situation our police may encounter. 

 



3  

While doing her due diligence, Chief Backing sought not only three quotes for this 

vehicle, she also found a used 2018 Ford Police Interceptor that is outfitted and 

ready to go from Midwest Public Safety Solutions for the price of $29,500.00. 

While this is a good price for an outfitted vehicle, my concern is that this vehicle 

already has over 46,000 miles on it. Even though these miles are not “patrol miles” 

but are rather “highway miles,” I do not believe it would be a wise investment for 

the Village to make as we would be purchasing a patrol vehicle that has more miles 

on it than the 2016 Tahoe that the Village currently owns and maintains. Chief 

Backing also sought quotes for a Dodge Charger and a Dodge Durango. However, 

after discussing this matter with staff, I recommend that the Village only consider 

the MiDeal quote (attached to the resolution) from Signature Ford/ Lincoln of 

Owosso.  

 

Please note that the quote is only for the vehicle itself – this vehicle will also need 

to be outfitted with other modifications that will ultimately make it “patrol ready.” 

 

Proposed Resolution 2020-05: Approving the Purchase of Six (6) Motorola 

APX Series Radios for Use by the Police Department 

 

Currently, the Police Department rely on Motorola XTS 2500 handheld radios to 

communicate with Ionia County Central Dispatch, other police departments, and 

other officers. The XTS 2500 model is no longer made by Motorola and are no 

longer supported by the manufacturer. Furthermore, the accepted lifespan of these 

radios is generally ten years and the radios that our Police use are currently 14 

years old.  

 

In the 2019-2020 budget, the Village earmarked $22,000.00 for new radios for the 

Police Department (101-301-970.001 “Capital Outlay-Equipment”). This proposed 

purchase is for $20,942.84. 

 

Approval of Budget Amendments as Submitted 

 

Items of Note 

 

◼ Please remember that overnight parking restrictions are from 

November 1, 2019 and end on April 1, 2019. No parking is allowed on 

Village Streets between 2:00 am and 6:00 am between these dates. 

◼ I encourage you to read the reports from my staff as they have excellent 

information contained within them.  

 



4  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Patrick Reagan, Village Manager  

Village of Lake Odessa 



 

DECEMBER 2019 MONTHLY REPORT 

 

 



Public Relations:  Shop With A Hero Program hosted by Meijer and Walmart in Ionia, Michigan. 

The children selected to participate in this program were give $100.00 gift cards to spend on 

gifts while accompanied by a local emergency responder. Food and gift wrapping were also 

included in the initiative.  

 

 

 

 



Public Relations: 

Parade of Lights presented by the Lakewood Area Chamber and the Downtown Development Authority. 

Thank you to everyone who made this event possible for our community. We loved all the lights, music, 

weather and the awesome set up at the fire department.  

  

 

 

 

 

 



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



OPERATION CHRISTMAS CHEER: 

 

In November, an anonymous donor reached out to our department asking for assistance with 

selecting a family who was deserving of having their Christmas brightened.  Every year for the 

past ten years, the anonymous donor chooses a different police agency to carry out an initiative 

called, “Operation Christmas Cheer”. The mission and vision of the program is for a deserving 

family to have a positive interaction with a law enforcement agency and their personnel.  

 

We were so excited to have been selected this year! We received various packages for several 

weeks that were delivered to our building for the family that generated from their Wish List. We 

arranged a specific day that would work well for the family and they came to the Page Memorial 

Building to enjoy some food, beverages and collect their gifts. We wanted the family to associate 

our building as a safe place and felt this would be a great way to interact with the family.  

 

The family was extremely appreciative and beyond grateful. We will not forget this day. The act 

of giving truly is transforming.  

 

 
 

 

 

Citizen Comments: 

 

“Thank you for always going above and beyond around the school. It goes noticed every single 

day that us parents see you out there making sure our kids are safe. Thank you and Merry 

Christmas”   

 



 

 

 
The Lake Odessa Police Department handled 41 calls for service for the month of December, 

Attended 5 Public Relations events, Conducted 52 Traffic Stops, Issued 19 Citations and 59 

Warnings, Effected 4 arrests, Issued 3 Parking Tickets, 1 Ordinance Violation, 1 Property 

Damage Accident, 2016 Chevy Tahoe Mileage 48015, 2012 Chevy Impala Mileage 82524. 

 

Calls For Service:                                                                                         

(5) Obstructing Justice  

(3) Misd. Traffic Offense  

(3) Larceny   

(6) Suspicious Situation 

(4) Assist Outside Agency  

(3) Civil                                                                               

(3)Vehicle Lock Out 

(4)Health and Safety                                    

(2)Assault                                                                           

Open Door                                                     

SOR Update                                               

Suspicious Vehicle                                     

Loud Music 

Probation Violation 

Alarm 

Retail Fraud 

Found Property  

 

Public Relation Events: 

December 3, 2019   Meijer Shop With A Hero 

December 7, 2019   Village of Sunfield Christmas Parade 

December 11, 2019 Walmart Shop With a Hero 

December 13, 2019  Parade of Lights 

December 21, 2019 Operation Christmas Cheer    



 

December 2019 Lake Odessa Police Department Accomplishments: 

 

A significant focus throughout the year was community immersion. The Lake Odessa 

Police Department had a presence in several community events throughout the year which 

strengthened connections and empowered positive interactions. The following events were 

attended by members of the Lake Odessa Police Department; 

 

Art In the Park  

Easter Egg Hunt  

Fair 

Jordan Lake Trail 5k Walk/Run 

Central Dispatch Open House  

Presentation to GFWC Women’s Club Lake Odessa  

Halloween Safety Check Point 

Halloween Parade at Lakewood Elementary 

Prescription Take Back Initiatives 

Meijer Shop with A Hero 

Village of Sunfield Christmas Parade 

Walmart Shop with a Hero 

Parade of Lights 

Operation Christmas Cheer  

 

The Lake Odessa Police Departments social media Facebook page has grown to over 1400 

followers due to frequent postings of community matters which in return has allowed for 

quick information to be disseminated in real time, transparency, and responsiveness to our 

community matters. Postings have included; 

 

Community Event Information 

Educational Awareness 

Ordinance Reminders 

Department Photos 

Traffic Notifications 

Weather Warnings 

 

Patrol and community relation efforts focused significantly in the areas of Washington 

Blvd, Jordan Lake Avenue and Jordan Lake Street due to construction detours and school 

zone safety concerns. As a result of these efforts, positive community feedback has circled 

back to our department thanking us for our efforts in these areas of concentration. 

Downtown business door checks were implemented into our patrol duties and updated 

business contact forms were achieved through personal contact of officers to each of the 

businesses.  

 

 

 

 



Lake Odessa Police Department 2020 Goals: 

 

Safe Exchange Zone designated at the Lake Odessa Police Department reserved for child 

custody, private property and E-commerce transactions. A large number of people use 

online services, including Craigslist, Marketplace, and phone Apps, to buy and sell items. 

For this reason, we would like to be able to offer a designated safe exchange location at the 

Page building that is under surveillance 24/7 to allow for a safe/monitored place to meet 

someone.  

 

Purchase and Install a Radar Speed Sign to calm and resolve traffic issues especially 

during school start and release times. Animated graphics and speed display information is 

a proactive way to alert drivers attention to speed, school zone times, and construction 

areas.  

 

Register to host National Night Out- This is a community-police awareness raising event, 

held the first Tuesday in August. The event has been held annually since 1984 and the event 

is meant to increase awareness about resources in communities and anti-crime efforts. 

 

The Lake Odessa Police Department will continue to be a visible presence in the 

community and develop programs that reach various groups to include the elderly, 

business community, property owner, student population, and all residents. We will 

continue to provide the citizens of Lake Odessa with community focused police services. 

We will commit ourselves as an agency to quality training and continuous education to 

serve the citizens in the most responsive and professional manner.  

 

 



Department of Public Works 

 December 7th 2019 to January 14th 2020 

Council Report 

Parks & Beach 

Picked up fallen limbs from the minor ice storm. 

Streets 

Weather permitting, the guys have been cold patching pot holes as they surface. We repaired a storm basin lead 

on Virginia St that was damaged by contractor during a gas service install. We installed 4 new Village limit signs. 

Water 

We finished installing battery backups at both water towers. These will prevent any interruption to water controls 

during a long-term power outage. We installed new exterior lighting and changed the interior lighting at the water 

treatment plants to a more energy efficient l.e.d lighting. We received $800 in incentives by changing out this 

lighting. We also received a $1,500 rebate check for installing the variable frequency drive on well #6. During a 

summer storm, lightning struck a home on Tupper Lake St which damaged 21 water meters. An insurance claim 

was made and we have since replaced those meters. We installed a security camera system at the water treatment 

plants. 

DPW 

The garland and flower pots full of greenery were removed from downtown. Typically, after the flower pots are 

removed, the empty planters attract a lot of trash due to the exposed tops with nothing in them. To combat this 

issue, the guys made tops for the planters and installed them after removing the greenery. We have not had a 

dedicated breakroom at the DPW garage for many years now. We spent a couple of days reorganizing supplies and 

doing a minor remodel of a storage room in order to make a dedicated breakroom. This gives us a better place to 

warm up during the winter and a little less dust on the table during lunch! Is it ever going to actually snow?!!! We 

have salted the streets a few times but have only officially plowed once. We are prepared for snow, but I’ll be 

honest and tell you that I haven’t minded the mild winter! 

Purchase Recommendation  

None at this time. 

Additional Comments 

I had the prebuild meeting with the equipment upfitter and truck chassis supplier regarding the Freightliner dump 

truck purchase. A couple of minor modifications were needed on the truck chassis and a change was made to the 

equipment. The changes actually saved us a few bucks and the chassis and equipment has been ordered. We 

anticipate delivery around Thanksgiving 2020. 

 



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 1/3Page: 01/15/2020 10:53 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

Bank ARTS 

422.50 CHIEF CART3098ARTS12/04/2019

ARTS TOTALS:

422.50 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
422.50 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank CAR 6523 CAR SHOW

164.51 MARTI MEIER RISK1130CAR12/03/2019
187.50 CHIEF CART1131CAR12/04/2019

CAR TOTALS:

352.01 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
352.01 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank GEN 1447 GENERAL FUND

614.00 CMP DISTRIBUTORS, INC40768GEN12/02/2019
300.00 KATHY'S CLEANING40769GEN12/02/2019

1,310.95 WEX BANK40770GEN12/02/2019
125.00 FLEX ADMINISTRATORS, INC.40771GEN12/02/2019
194.56 ODESSA TOWNSHIP40772GEN12/02/2019
196.00 O'MARA PLUMBING HEATING & COOLING40773GEN12/02/2019
147.36 VERIZON WIRELESS40774GEN12/02/2019

2,255.51 CONSUMERS ENERGY40775GEN12/04/2019
120.00 LES'S SANITARY SERVICE40776GEN12/04/2019
94.05 LAKEWOOD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY40777GEN12/04/2019
74.96 NAPA OF IONIA40778GEN12/04/2019

108.96 LAKEWOOD NEWS40779GEN12/06/2019
212.48 MENARDS-IONIA40780GEN12/09/2019

5.11 QUILL CORPORATION40781GEN12/09/2019
15.00 UNION BANK40782GEN12/20/2019

2,353.96 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN40783GEN12/20/2019
335.79 CARDMEMBER SERVICE40784GEN12/20/2019
79.38 COBB'S QUICK LUBE40785GEN12/20/2019

786.96 CONSUMERS ENERGY40786GEN12/20/2019
38.00 DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC40787GEN12/20/2019

6,422.03 IONIA COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER40788GEN12/20/2019
216.33 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL40789GEN12/20/2019

1,135.06 MILLER, JOHNSON, SNELL & CUMMISKEY40790GEN12/20/2019
66.00 MICHIGAN STATE POLICE40791GEN12/20/2019

378.64 NAPA OF IONIA40792GEN12/20/2019
57.98 QUILL CORPORATION40793GEN12/20/2019

459.49 THE SBAM PLAN40794GEN12/20/2019
594.00 SMITH WELDING & REPAIR40795GEN12/20/2019
127.23 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER40796GEN12/20/2019
271.58 VERIZON WIRELESS40797GEN12/20/2019
67.41 WOW!  BUSINESS40798GEN12/20/2019
91.25 WOW!  BUSINESS40799GEN12/20/2019

2,832.00 ZUERCHER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC40800GEN12/20/2019
11.63 CARL'S SUPERMARKET40801GEN12/20/2019
43.41 CONSUMERS ENERGY40802GEN12/20/2019

GEN TOTALS:



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 2/3Page: 01/15/2020 10:53 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

22,142.07 Total of 35 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
22,142.07 Total of 35 Checks:

Bank HWY 6659 GENERAL HWY

93.37 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN1954HWY12/20/2019
68.79 THE SBAM PLAN1955HWY12/20/2019

HWY TOTALS:

162.16 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
162.16 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank LOC 6646 LOCAL STREETS

27.76 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2216LOC12/20/2019
10.05 THE SBAM PLAN2217LOC12/20/2019

LOC TOTALS:

37.81 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
37.81 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank MAJ 6633 MAJOR STREETS

47.79 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2283MAJ12/20/2019
10.20 THE SBAM PLAN2284MAJ12/20/2019

MAJ TOTALS:

57.99 Total of 2 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
57.99 Total of 2 Checks:

Bank PR VI 1498 PAYROLL 

187.50 AMERICAN FUNDS15(E)PR VI12/30/2019

PR VI TOTALS:

187.50 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
187.50 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank WATER 6620 WATER

685.06 WEX BANK4771WATER12/02/2019
3,366.96 HOMEWORKS4772WATER12/02/2019

34.59 VERIZON WIRELESS4773WATER12/02/2019
768.96 BADGER METER 4774WATER12/04/2019
150.00 H2O COMPLIANCE SERVICES INC.4775WATER12/04/2019
465.50 RS TECHNICAL SERVICES4776WATER12/04/2019
26.96 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER4777WATER12/06/2019

2,368.81 MCCROMETER4778WATER12/09/2019
187.74 MENARDS-IONIA4779WATER12/09/2019
81.04 QUILL CORPORATION4780WATER12/09/2019
85.77 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER4781WATER12/09/2019
75.02 AT&T4782WATER12/20/2019



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 3/3Page: 01/15/2020 10:53 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2019 - 12/31/2019

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

3,524.27 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN4783WATER12/20/2019
1,210.72 CONSUMERS ENERGY4784WATER12/20/2019

766.01 CRYSTAL FLASH4785WATER12/20/2019
660.00 ETNA SUPPLY - GRAND RAPIDS4786WATER12/20/2019
624.34 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL4787WATER12/20/2019

1,160.98 MISS DIG SYSTEM, INC.4788WATER12/20/2019
292.37 THE SBAM PLAN4789WATER12/20/2019
149.67 VERIZON WIRELESS4790WATER12/20/2019
44.00 CITY OF IONIA4791WATER12/20/2019

1,086.21 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL4792WATER12/20/2019

WATER TOTALS:

17,814.98 Total of 22 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
17,814.98 Total of 22 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

41,177.02 Total of 67 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
41,177.02 Total of 67 Checks:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/8Page:01/15/2020 10:50 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

86.48 113,490.51 839,710.00 799,710.00 726,219.49 812,740.15 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

86.48 113,490.51 839,710.00 799,710.00 726,219.49 812,740.15 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
84.28 12,904.43 82,075.00 69,050.00 69,170.57 64,917.62 GOVERNING BODY101
59.89 20,150.16 50,240.00 50,240.00 30,089.84 17,838.84 MANAGERS172
30.27 20,263.80 29,060.00 29,060.00 8,796.20 23,347.99 PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING265
55.56 158,059.73 355,640.00 355,640.00 197,580.27 207,291.62 POLICE301
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FIRE336

65.77 58,140.21 169,844.45 203,360.00 111,704.24 220,171.67 PUBLIC WORKS441
61.49 14,532.28 37,740.00 37,740.00 23,207.72 32,475.89 PUBLIC UTILITIES-STREET LIGHTING448
95.53 151.82 3,400.00 3,400.00 3,248.18 4,133.78 WATER/SEWER536
75.34 1,891.34 7,670.00 7,670.00 5,778.66 7,010.46 ZONING722
31.80 3,751.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,749.00 4,612.31 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT728
86.05 5,306.85 38,050.00 38,050.00 32,743.15 27,956.06 PARKS AND RECREATION751
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LIBRARY790
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 999

62.12 295,151.62 779,219.45 799,710.00 484,067.83 609,756.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

400.31 (181,661.11)60,490.55 0.00 242,151.66 202,983.91 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

62.12 295,151.62 779,219.45 799,710.00 484,067.83 609,756.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
86.48 113,490.51 839,710.00 799,710.00 726,219.49 812,740.15 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 2/8Page:01/15/2020 10:50 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND
Revenues

79.41 38,538.81 187,190.00 182,060.00 148,651.19 173,904.95 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

79.41 38,538.81 187,190.00 182,060.00 148,651.19 173,904.95 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
89.41 20,033.01 189,230.00 184,100.00 169,196.99 137,977.73 STREET DEPT (ACT 51)449
80.24 839.94 4,250.00 4,250.00 3,410.06 3,893.87 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450
20.70 2,941.90 3,710.00 3,710.00 768.10 7,584.94 SNOW REMOVAL869

87.92 23,814.85 197,190.00 192,060.00 173,375.15 149,456.54 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

247.24 14,723.96 (10,000.00)(10,000.00)(24,723.96)24,448.41 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

87.92 23,814.85 197,190.00 192,060.00 173,375.15 149,456.54 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
79.41 38,538.81 187,190.00 182,060.00 148,651.19 173,904.95 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 3/8Page:01/15/2020 10:50 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND
Revenues

59.76 26,153.55 65,000.00 65,000.00 38,846.45 160,221.97 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

59.76 26,153.55 65,000.00 65,000.00 38,846.45 160,221.97 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
45.59 17,003.22 31,250.00 31,250.00 14,246.78 25,063.18 STREET DEPT (ACT 51)449
83.29 1,094.22 6,550.00 6,550.00 5,455.78 6,229.80 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450
13.08 3,224.65 3,710.00 3,710.00 485.35 3,068.89 SNOW REMOVAL869

48.63 21,322.09 41,510.00 41,510.00 20,187.91 34,361.87 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

79.43 4,831.46 23,490.00 23,490.00 18,658.54 125,860.10 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

48.63 21,322.09 41,510.00 41,510.00 20,187.91 34,361.87 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
59.76 26,153.55 65,000.00 65,000.00 38,846.45 160,221.97 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 4/8Page:01/15/2020 10:50 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY
Revenues

94.99 11,466.15 228,900.00 228,900.00 217,433.85 216,090.74 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

94.99 11,466.15 228,900.00 228,900.00 217,433.85 216,090.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL000

89.82 15,483.63 152,100.00 152,100.00 136,616.37 128,589.73 HIGHWAYS, STREETS (NOT ACT 51)446
82.80 4,213.64 24,500.00 24,500.00 20,286.36 23,082.84 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450

88.85 19,697.27 176,600.00 176,600.00 156,902.73 151,672.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

115.74 (8,231.12)52,300.00 52,300.00 60,531.12 64,418.17 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

88.85 19,697.27 176,600.00 176,600.00 156,902.73 151,672.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
94.99 11,466.15 228,900.00 228,900.00 217,433.85 216,090.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 5/8Page:01/15/2020 10:50 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues

59.63 12,725.91 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,799.09 30,823.22 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

59.63 12,725.91 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,799.09 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 DDA275

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

372.69 (7,362.55)2,700.00 2,700.00 10,062.55 22,009.43 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

30.31 20,088.46 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,736.54 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
59.63 12,725.91 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,799.09 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 6/8Page:01/15/2020 10:50 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 290 - ARTS
Revenues

106.59 (624.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,096.00 24,069.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

106.59 (624.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,096.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
117.29 (1,637.62)9,472.00 9,472.00 11,109.62 15,991.60 ARTS752

117.29 (1,637.62)9,472.00 9,472.00 11,109.62 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 1,013.62 0.00 0.00 (1,013.62)8,077.40 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

117.29 (1,637.62)9,472.00 9,472.00 11,109.62 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
106.59 (624.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,096.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 290 - ARTS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 7/8Page:01/15/2020 10:50 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW
Revenues

113.77 (413.82)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,418.82 3,223.50 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

113.77 (413.82)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,418.82 3,223.50 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
140.60 (1,219.90)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,224.90 3,384.82 CAR SHOW753

140.60 (1,219.90)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,224.90 3,384.82 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 806.08 0.00 0.00 (806.08)(161.32)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

140.60 (1,219.90)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,224.90 3,384.82 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
113.77 (413.82)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,418.82 3,223.50 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 8/8Page:01/15/2020 10:50 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2019

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2019

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues

91.80 78,560.72 958,291.45 947,675.00 879,730.73 2,849,043.07 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

91.80 78,560.72 958,291.45 947,675.00 879,730.73 2,849,043.07 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
79.64 173,665.26 852,941.89 822,105.00 679,276.63 825,888.02 WATER/SEWER536

79.64 173,665.26 852,941.89 822,105.00 679,276.63 825,888.02 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

190.28 (95,104.54)105,349.56 125,570.00 200,454.10 2,023,155.05 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

79.64 173,665.26 852,941.89 822,105.00 679,276.63 825,888.02 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
91.80 78,560.72 958,291.45 947,675.00 879,730.73 2,849,043.07 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:

215.64 (270,984.20)234,330.11 194,060.00 505,314.31 2,470,791.15 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

73.63 550,882.03 2,088,763.34 2,073,287.00 1,537,881.31 1,799,325.45 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
87.95 279,897.83 2,323,093.45 2,267,347.00 2,043,195.62 4,270,116.60 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 

 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 

motion to adopt the following resolution: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01 

 

APPROVING THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S APPOINTMENT OF MEG WHEELER 

TO THE VILLAGE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

WHEREAS, per Michigan PA 3 of 1895 (“General Law Village Act”) (62.2)(Sec.2)(1): 

 

“The president may nominate and the council appoint such officers as shall be 

provided for by resolution or ordinance of the council. The council may provide 

by ordinance or resolution for the appointment of other officers whose election or 

appointment is not specifically provided for in this act, as the council considers 

necessary for the execution of the powers granted by this act. The powers and 

duties of such officers shall be prescribed by the council. The council may require 

that the officers perform their duties faithfully and that proper measures be taken 

to punish neglect of duty by an officer,” and; 

 

WHEREAS, the Lake Odessa Village President, the Honorable Karen L. Banks, has received an 

application from Meg Wheeler, a Village resident residing at 906 Lakeview Drive, for 

appointment to the Village’s Planning Commission for the remainder of an unexpired term ending 

October 2021.A copy of this application is attached as “Exhibit A.” 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council approves the appointment of Meg Wheeler to the Village’s Planning 

Commission for the remainder of an unexpired term ending in October 2021.  

2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 

resolution are rescinded.  

 

Ayes:   

 

Nays:   

 

Absent: 

 

Abstain: 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 



Dated: January 21, 2020    __________________________________ 

        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 

 











Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 

 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 

motion to adopt the following resolution: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-02 

 

APPROVING THE SETTING OF A PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE ADOPTION OF 

THE FY 2020-2021 VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA FOR MONDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 

2020 AT 7:00 PM 

 

WHEREAS, the fiscal year for the Village of Lake Odessa begins on March 1st; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa has traditionally adopted the budget for the upcoming 

fiscal year at their regularly scheduled meeting in February; and 

 

WHEREAS the Village Manager recommends that a public hearing be noticed, published, and 

held at least one week prior to the adoption of the Village’s budget, and that the proposed millage 

rates be part of this public hearing and notice; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to allow the comments and opinions of the citizens to be heard, a public 

hearing on the FY 2020-2021 budget be held on Monday, February 17, 2020 at 7:00 pm at the 

Page Memorial Building, 839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, Michigan 48849. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council approves the setting of a public hearing on the FY 2020-2021 Village 

budget and FY 2020-2021 Village millage rates be held on Monday, February 17, 2020 at 7:00 

pm at the Page Memorial Building, 839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, Michigan 48849.  

2. The Village Council authorizes and directs the Village Clerk/ Treasurer to publish a notice 

of public hearing on the proposed budget at least one week prior to the hearing to comply with 

requirements of State law. 

2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 

resolution are rescinded.  

 

Ayes:   

 

Nays:   

 

Absent: 

 

Abstain: 

 



RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated: January 21, 2020    __________________________________ 

        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 

 



Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 

 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 

motion to adopt the following resolution: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03 

 

APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION FOR THE 

LAKEWOOD RECREATIONAL AUTHORITY 

 

WHEREAS, The Village of Lake Odessa and the Township of Odessa have obtained grant funds 

from the State of Michigan to construct a shared walking trail; and 

 

WHEREAS, the aforementioned municipalities have agreed that the construction of this trail will 

be the ultimate responsibility -- both during the construction phase and all future maintenance -- 

of both entities, thus necessitating an Authority (per Michigan Public Act 321 of 2000) to allow 

the entities to work together; and 

 

WHEREAS, Articles of Incorporation have been written and are attached to this resolution as 

“Exhibit A;” and 

 

WHEREAS, per Public Act 321, these articles have been published in the Lakewood News; and 

 

WHEREAS, these articles must be adopted by the municipalities prior to taking effect. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council approves and adopts the Articles of Incorporation for the Lakewood 

Recreational Authority as presented in Exhibit A.  

2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 

resolution are rescinded.  

 

Ayes:   

 

Nays:   

 

Absent: 

 

Abstain: 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated: January 21, 2020    __________________________________ 

        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 



























Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 

 

Trustee________________________, supported by Trustee_________________________, made a 

motion to adopt the following resolution: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-04 

 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A 2020 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR THROUGH THE 

MiDEAL PROGRAM FOR THE LAKE ODESSA POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa owns, operates, and maintains two vehicles for use as patrol cars for the 

Village’s Police Department – one is a 2012 Chevrolet Impala and the other is a 2016 Chevrolet Tahoe; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2012 Chevrolet Impala is eight years old and has been run over 85,000 patrol-miles; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2012 Chevrolet Impala is well past its accepted useful life as it is eight years old and standard 

municipal practice throughout the state is to remove patrol cars after five to six years of service; and 

 

WHEREAS, though the Village’s “Equipment Replacement/ Maintenance Schedule” calls for the 2012 Chevrolet 

Impala to be replaced in the 2020/ 2021 FY, the Police Department’s budget was found to have remaining funds 

that were not expended due to not hiring any part-time officers; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Chief found quotes for a 2020 Ford Police Interceptor AWD through the MiDeal program 

and requests approval to purchase one for the amount of $33,809.00. A copy of this quote is attached as “Exhibit 

A;” and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village Manager recommends that this purchase be approved and that the 2012 Chevrolet 

Impala be repurposed for use by other Village departments as necessary. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1. The Lake Odessa Village Council approves the purchase of a 2020 Ford Police Interceptor AWD in the 

amount of $33,809.00 through the MiDeal program. 

2. The Lake Odessa Village Council approves the repurposing of the 2012 Chevrolet Impala for use by other 

Village departments as necessary. 

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions are, to the extent of any conflict with this resolution, rescinded. 

 

Ayes: 
 

Nays: 
 

Absent: 
 



Abstain: 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated: January 21, 2020     _______________________________ 

                    Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 















Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 

 

Trustee________________________, supported by Trustee_________________________, made a 

motion to adopt the following resolution: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-05 

 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF SIX (6) MOTOROLA APX SERIES RADIOS THROUGH THE 

MiDEAL PROGRAM FOR THE LAKE ODESSA POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa Police Department rely on handheld radios to communicate with Ionia 

County Central Dispatch, other officers, and other police departments throughout the state in order to respond to 

emergencies and other callouts as necessary; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Police Department currently use Motorola XTS 2500 radios that are approximately fourteen (14) 

years old that are no longer supported by the manufacturer or are able to be easily serviced by third party repair 

service providers. Furthermore, the generally expected lifespan of these radios is ten (10) years; and 

 

WHEREAS, the FY 2019-2020 budget included $22,000 (101-301-970.001 “Capital Outlay-Equipment”) for the 

purchase of new radios to replace the current old and outdated models; and 

 

WHEREAS, through the MiDeal program, the Chief of Police has received a quote direct from Motorola for the 

purchase of six (6) Motorola APX model radios for a total price of $20,942.84. A copy of this quote and a memo 

from Chief Backing is attached as “Exhibit A.”  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1. The Lake Odessa Village Council approves the purchase of six (6) Motorola APX Series radios, through 

the MiDeal program, for the cost of $20,942.84. 

2. All resolutions and parts of resolutions are, to the extent of any conflict with this resolution, rescinded. 

 

Ayes: 
 

Nays: 
 

Absent: 
 

Abstain: 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated: January 21, 2020     _______________________________ 

                    Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 









Equipment Proposal: 

 

Clear communication can make the difference between life and death. Reliable communications 

are non-negotiable for first responders. The departments current radios (Motorola XTS 2500) are 

in need of various states of repair creating officer safety concerns. Due to the age of the radios 

they are no longer supported. If one of the radios failed, we are only left with a replacement 

option. These radios were a great value for the money spent years ago and they have outlasted 

their life expectancy of ten years.  

 

Due to Motorola ceasing production of these radios and electronic repairs no longer being 

available these radios will need to be replaced with an APX series.  

 

Motorola Solutions Quote APX Series Radios: 

 

CONTRACT: STATE OF MICHIGAN 

TOTAL: 19,242.84  

MPSCS ACTIVATION FEE: $250.00 per Unit TOTAL: $1500.00 

GRAND TOTAL: $20,742.84  

 

 

 

 

 
 






